IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; AND AMERICAN GRATING, LLC

Appellants/Cross-Respondents,

VS.

DANIEL S. SIMON; AND THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON, A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION,

Respondents/Cross-Appellants.

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; AND AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

Appellants

VS.

DANIEL S. SIMON; AND THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON, A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

Respondents.

THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON,

Petitioner

VS.

THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK; AND THE HONORABLE TIERRA DANIELLE JONES, DISTRICT JUDGE,

Respondents, and

NO. 77678

10/16/17	Finalize Reply to opposition to Motion to Strike & Attend Margaret Ho Deposition	4.75
10/16/17	Draft and Send Email to GZ; Re: Requesting TC and Deposition Dates	.25
10/16/17	Email Chain with JP, AD, TU, JR; Re: Privilege Log	.15
10/16/17	Draft and send email to AF re Viking's production of Carnahan's depo and review AF response	.15

10/16/17	Draft and send email to AF re production of Rapid Cash ad and review AF response	.15
10/16/17	Email chain with AF re Viking's 15th ECC Supp	.15
10/16/17	Email chain with AF and client re supplementing motion to strike	.15
10/16/17	Call with Client	.25
10/16/17	Call with Client	.50
10/16/17	Call with Client	.15
10/16/17	Call with AMF	.10
10/16/17	Call with AMF	.15
10/16/17	Call with Client	.10
10/17/17	Call with AMF	.15
10/17/17	Call with AMF	.15
10/17/17	Call with Client	.50
10/17/17	Call with Client	.15
10/17/17	Email chain with AF re 2.34 re Pomerantz as expert	.15
10/17/17	Email chain with AF re research for Reply to Lange MSJ	.50
10/17/17	Email chain with AF re depo cites for Reply to Lange MSJ	.75
10/17/17	Review Lange's 11th ECC Supplement	1.25
10/17/17	Draft Motion to Strike Expert Carnahan; Revise Supplement to Motion to Strike Defendants Answer	6.75
10/17/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.40
10/17/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.50
10/17/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment and Response	.50
10/17/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
10/17/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Attachment	.15
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.40

10/18/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Emails from Client	.35
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
10/18/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/18/17	Email Chain with Client	.15
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.25
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.50
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
10/18/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
10/18/17	Draft and send email to AF re supplement to Motion to strike and review AF response	.75
10/18/17	Prepare and Attend Hearing on Plaintiffs Motion to Strike Defendants Answer	5.25
10/18/17	Review Lange Opposition to Motion for MSJ and draft Reply	2.25
10/18/17	Review Viking Written Discovery Responses and Analyze; Discussion with AF	1.25
10/18/17	Call with Client	.50
10/18/17	Call with Client	.10
10/18/17	Call with Client	.75
10/19/17	Call with Client	.35
10/19/17	Call with Mike Nunez	.15
10/19/17	Call with Mike Nunez	.10

10/19/17	Call with Mike Nunez	.10
10/19/17	Call with Mike Nunez	.15
10/19/17	Call with Client	.50
10/19/17	Revise Reply to Lange Opposition to MSJ	4.0
10/19/17	Draft Supplement to Motion to Strike	2.50
10/19/17	Review Viking's 15th ECC Supplement	1.25
10/19/17	Email Chain with F. Hale, MN, AD, JP, SK, D. Holloman; Re: Mediation	.50
10/19/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.25
10/19/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.50
10/19/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.40
10/19/17	Email Chain with Client	.50
10/19/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/19/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
10/19/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
10/19/17	Draft and send email to AF re supplementing documents including El Segundo letter and review AF response	.20
10/19/17	Email chain with AF re Giberti Motion for Good Faith Settlement and whether we will oppose	.15
10/19/17	Email chain with AF re Olivas depo and Pancoast email	.15
10/20/17	Draft and send email to AF re inserting hidden activation information into supplement and review AF response	.15
10/20/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Attachment	.15
10/20/17	Call with Client	.15
10/20/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.35
10/20/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/20/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.40

10/20/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
10/20/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Link	.15
10/20/17	Revise Reply to MSJ	3.25
10/20/17	Revise Supplement to Motion to Strike	3.75
10/20/17	Conference Call with UL Lawyers Susan McNicholas from Chicago & Discussion with AF; Review Subpoena and Notice	1.25
10/21/17	Email Chain with D. Holloman; Re: Mediation	.25
10/21/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Attachment	.15
10/21/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.40
10/21/17	Email Chain with Client with Attachment	.25
10/21/17	Email chain with AF re pre-lien notice form Lange	0.15
10/22/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
10/22/17	Email Chain with Client with Attachment	.25
10/22/17	Revise Supplement to Motion to Strike	1.25
10/23/17	Draft and send email to AF re Opp to Zurich Motion and review AF response	1.0
10/23/17	Revise Supplement to Motion to Strike	1.50
10/23/17	Revise Reply to Lange MSJ	1.75
10/23/17	Review Plaintiff 13 th Supplement to ECC; Viking Compliance Documents; Emails; Discussion with AF	1.5
10/23/17	Draft Letter to Lange Dalacas re Lien	.25
10/23/17	Review ZAIC Motion for Protective Order; Draft opposition	1.5
10/23/17	Conversation with Client	.25
10/23/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.50
10/23/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.50
10/23/17	Email Chain with Client with Attachment	.25

10/23/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client and Response	.15
10/23/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.50
10/23/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/23/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
10/23/17	Email chain with AF re supplement to motion to strike	.20
10/23/17	Call with Client	.15
10/24/17	Call with Client	.10
10/24/17	Call with Client	.25
10/24/17	Call with Mike Nunez	.15
10/24/17	Call with Client	.25
10/24/17	Call with Mike Nunez	.25
10/24/17	Call with Client	.25
10/24/17	Call with Client	.50
10/24/17	Review Email from ZAIC; Review attachment; Draft Reply Email	.75
10/24/17	Attend DC Hearing; Status Check	2.25
10/24/17	Draft Supplemental Reply - MSJ Lange	2.5
10/24/17	Review Viking Correspondence re competing DCRR's	1.0
10/25/17	Revise Written Discovery to Viking; Discussion with AF	1.5
10/25/17	Email Chain with AF, AD, SK, TU, MN, JP; Re: DCRR 10/4/17	.25
10/25/17	Email Chain with EC, JP, MN, AD, TP; Re: 16 th Supp	.50
10/25/17	Email Chain with Client with Attachments	.25
10/25/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/25/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.40
10/25/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
10/25/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.25

10/25/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.50
10/25/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.40
10/25/17	Draft and send email to AF re new topic for 30(b)(6) notice and written discovery to Viking and review AF response	.25
10/25/17	Call with Client	.10
10/25/17	Call with Client	.25
10/26/17	Call with Client	.15
10/26/17	Call with Client	.25
10/26/17	Call with Client	.25
10/26/17	Call with AMF	.20
10/26/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.35
10/26/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/26/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.40
10/26/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.75
10/26/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.40
10/26/17	Email Chain with Client; Settlement Offer	.15
10/26/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Link	.15
10/26/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.25
10/26/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.50
10/26/17	Review Viking's 16th ECC Supplement	0.75
10/26/17	Revise Written Discovery to Viking; Discussion with AF	1.25
10/26/17	Discussion with Lange Counsel: Mr. Parker	.50
10/26/17	Email Chain with AF, AD, TU, SK, IB, MN, JP; Re: Order Rosenthal	.15
10/27/17	Call with Client	.40
10/27/17	Call with AMF	.10
10/27/17	Call with Client	.10

10/27/17	Call with AMF	.15
10/27/17	Email Chain with D. Holloman, AD, JP, MN, SK, NG; Re: Mediation	.25
10/27/17	Email Chain with JP, KR, SK, AF, AD, TP, TU; Re: MIL Stips	.75
10/27/17	Email Chain with EC, JP, MN, AD, TP, KR; Re: Expert Depositions	.40
10/27/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
10/27/17	Draft and Send Emails to Client with Links	.25
10/27/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/30/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/30/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Link	.15
10/30/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Link	.15
10/30/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Link	.15
10/30/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
10/30/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.40
10/30/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/30/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.40
10/30/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/30/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Emails from Client with Attachment	.25
10/30/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
10/30/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Emails from Client	.65
10/30/17	Draft and send email to AF re new written discovery to Viking and review AF response	.20
10/30/17	Review Viking Opposition to Motion to Exclude Carnahan & Prepare for hearing	3.25
10/30/17	Email Chain with JP, AF; Re: Olivas deposition	.40
10/30/17	Email Chain with JP, AF; Re: Carnahan Production	.35
10/30/17	Email Chain with SK, AF, AD, TU, MN, JP; Re: DCRR 10/4/17	.15

10/30/17	Call with AMF	.25
10/30/17	Call with Client	.50
10/31/17	Call with Client	.10
10/31/17	Email Chain with KR, AF, JP, SK; Re: Carnahan Deposition	.50
10/31/17	Email Chain with AF, KR, TP, JP; Re: DCRR 10/24/17	.15
10/31/17	Draft and send email to AF re email to Pancoast re English version of the insurance policy and review AF response	.15
10/31/17	Email chain with AF re UL notice and UL production of documents	.15
10/31/17	Prepare and Attend Hearing on MSJ	3.0
10/31/17	Draft Reply to Viking Opposition to Exclude Carnahan	2.75
10/31/17	Revise DCCR Re: 10-24-17 Hearing	.50
10/31/17	Review and revise written discovery to Viking	.75
11/1/17	Email Chain with GZ; Re: Additional Deposition Dates	.25
11/1/17	Call with Mike Nunez	.25
11/1/17	Call with Client	.50
11/1/17	Call with Client	.50
11/1/17	Email chain with AF re Viking document production (Martorano's depo in FSS and Thorpe)	.50
11/1/17	Draft and send email to AF re calendar and deposition re-scheduling	.15
11/1/17	Draft and send email and attachment to AF re picture for reply	.15
11/1/17	Discussion with Zamiski Re: Depo/Billing	.50
11/1/17	Revise Opposition to Zurich Motion for Protective Order	2.75
11/1/17	Email Chain with AF, JP; Re: Excess Policy	.15
11/1/17	Email Chain with KR, AF, JP, SK; Re: Depositions	.25
11/1/17	Email Chain with AF, KR, JP, SK; Re: Written Discovery	.25
11/1/17	Draft and Send Email to E. Chun with Link; Forward to Client	.25

11/1/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
11/1/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.15
11/1/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.15
11/1/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
11/1/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.25
11/1/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
11/1/17	Draft and Send Email to Client and Response	.15
11/1/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
11/1/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
11/1/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.25
11/1/17	Draft and Send Email to Client and Response	.15
11/1/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
11/2/17	Call with AMF	.35
11/2/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.50
11/2/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
11/2/17	Email Chain with D. Holloman; Re: Mediation	.50
11/2/17	Email Chain with KR, AF, JP, SK; Re: Depositions	.30
11/2/17	Revise Motion to Compel Financials	2.25
11/2/17	Revise Motion to Compel Depos and Reports	2.75
11/2/17	Email Chain with D. Holloman; Re: Payment of Fees	.25
11/3/17	Call with Mike Nunez	.25
11/3/17	Call with Client	.10
11/3/17	Call with Client	.10
11/3/17	Email Chain with KR, AF, JP, TP, SK; Re: DCRR 10/24/17	.25
11/3/17	Email Chain with KR, JP, SK; Re: Discovery Production	.75
11/3/17	Email Chain with KR, JP, TP, SK, AF; Re: DCRR 10/24/17	.50

11/3/17	Draft and Send Emails to Client	.15
11/3/17	Revise plaintiffs reply to Motion to Reconsider	1.75
11/4/17	Text Message with Teddy Parker	.10
11/4/17	Text Message with Teddy Parker	.10
11/6/17	Email Chain with D. Holloman, JP, TP, ES; Re: Mediation	.25
11/6/17	Email Chain with JP, AF; Re: Excess Policy	.15
11/6/17	Draft and Send Email to Client and Response	.15
11/6/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Attachment	.15
11/6/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
11/6/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
11/6/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Attachment and Response	.25
11/6/17	Email Chain with Client	.25
11/6/17	Draft and send email to AF re calling UL attorney and review AF response	.15
11/6/17	Draft and send email to AF re mediation and review AF response	.15
11/6/17	Revise Edgeworth Responses to Request to Produce cancelled checks; and Request for Evidence of Activations and Witness for Activations	.75
11/6/17	Revise Plaintiffs Reply to Exclude Carnahan	3.75
11/6/17	Call with Client	.25
11/6/17	Call with Client	.25
11/6/17	Call with Client	.25
11/6/17	Email Chain with D. Holloman; Re: Response to OJ and Lange Attendance	.50
11/6/17	Review Viking Correspondence re competing DCRR's	1.0
11/7/17	Call with AMF	.25
11/7/17	Call with Client	.40

11/7/17	Email to CP with Attachments Re: Viking Opp to Mot to Strike	.20
11/7/17	Draft and send email to AF re drafting motion to compel financial information from Lange and review AF response	.15
11/7/17	Review letter from Lange; Disc. with Parker; Respond to Emails from Mediator; Discussion with AF	1.25
11/7/17	Review Viking's 17th ECC Supplement	.50
11/7/17	Forward email to AF with attached letter from Parker	.25
11/7/17	Draft and send email to AF re sending information to Pomerantz and review AF response	.20
11/8/17	Discussion with Pomerantz	.50
11/9/17	Discussion with Lange Attorney Parker	.50
11/9/17	Review research re: cost of repairs and diminution in value damages; discussion with BJM	.75
11/9/17	Call with Client	.25
11/9/17	Discussion with Attorney AF; UL Attorney Conference Call; Notice of Deposition of Dalacus; Notice of Deposition of Court Reporter of Rene Stone; Telephone Conference to Robinson setting Carnahan Deposition; Conference Call with DC Bulla re: confidentiality	.75
11/9/17	Revise letter and DCRR to send to Court; Discussion with AF	.75
11/9/17	Review Viking's 18th ECC Supplement	.50
11/9/17	Email Chain with AF/CP with Attachments	.15
11/9/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
11/9/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment	.50
11/9/17	Draft and send email to AF re resending information to Pomerantz and review AF response	.15
11/9/17	Forward email to AF from Olivas with job file for deposition	.50
11/10/17	Email Chain with F. Hale, JP, MC, KR; Re: Mediator Proposal	.25
11/10/17	Attended Mediation	4.0

11/11/17	Email Chain with Client with Attachment; Review and Analyze Mediator Proposal	.50
11/13/17	Draft and send email with attachments to AF	.15
11/13/17	Review Viking Motion for MSC and Stay all Rulings; Discussion with AF; Review Letter to DC Bulla; Telephone Conference with Floyd Hale; Telephone Conference with J. Olivas Re: Deposition	2.25
11/13/17	Email chain with AF re complaint filed against Harold Rodgers	.25
11/13/17	Draft and send email to AF re research re privilege log and confidentiality issues and review AF response	.75
11/13/17	Draft and send email to AF re supplementing Pomerantz opinion letter	.15
11/13/17	Email chain with AF re expert depositions noticed by Viking	.15
11/13/17	Prepare for 11/14/17 Hearings	2.25
11/13/17	Review Pomerantz Report and Produce; Discussion with Pomerantz; Discussion with Charles Rego from UL and Client	2.75
11/13/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email From JO; Re: Additional Emails	.25
11/13/17	Email Chain with AF/CP with Attachments Re: Henderson	.15
11/13/17	Email from CP with Opinion letter	.75
11/13/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
11/13/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client; Discussion with Client	.25
11/13/17	Email Chain with Client with Attachment	.50
11/13/17	Draft and Send Email to Client	.15
11/13/17	Email Chain with Client	.15
11/13/17	Email Chain with Client	.50
11/13/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
11/13/17	Draft and Send Email to Client with Attachment	.15

11/13/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
11/13/17	Call with Client	.50
11/13/17	Call with Client	.25
11/14/17	Call with AMF	.10
11/14/17	Call with Client	.15
11/14/17	Call with Client	.10
11/14/17	Call with Client	.10
11/13/17	Email Chain with Client	.40
11/14/17	Email Chain with JP, AF, TP; Re: Inspection of Documents	.25
11/14/17	Email Chain with D. Holloman, JP, KR, JM; Re: Hale Settlement Matters	.25
11/14/17	Attend Hearings on MSJ; Review File with Client; Review Research; Prepare Emails to Pancoast Re: Depositions and Discovery Responses; Discussion with Attorney Olgivie Re: Retention; Email to Parker; Discussion with AF; Review Plaintiffs' 14th ECC Supplement; Review files	7.5
11/14/17	Draft and Send Email to Ogilvie with Attachments	.75
11/14/17	Telephone Call with Ogilvie Regarding Retention	.50
11/15/17	Review cases re: validity of contract under NRS 624; discussion with AF and BM	2.75
11/15/17	Review research re: admissibility of litigation conduct; discussion with BJM	.75
11/15/17	Discussion with BJM re: recoverable damages w/ breach of contract vs. product liability	.75
11/15/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.15
11/15/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client	.25
11/15/17	Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Link	.40
11/15/17	Call with Client	.25
11/15/17	Call with Client	.50

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