IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; and AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

Appellants/Cross-Respondents,

VS.

DANIEL S. SIMON; and THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON, a Professional Corporation,

Respondents/Cross-Appellants.

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

Appellants,

VS.

DANIEL S. SIMON; and THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON, a Professional Corporation,

Respondents.

LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON; DOES 1 through 10; and, ROE entities 1 through 10;

Petitioner,

VS.

THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Supreme Court Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

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

- The June 10th phone call oral contract formation claim was not made in three earlier affidavits or the complaints — or in the Edgeworth evidentiary hearing opening statement.¹¹⁹
- Despite the hundreds of emails between Simon and Brian
 Edgeworth, the alleged oral contract formed June 10 is not
 mentioned once, including emails exchanged on June 10th. 120
- The contingency email in August 2017 does not comment on the alleged express oral contract.¹²¹

¹¹⁷ IV-AA00959-964 & V-AA01110-1117

¹¹⁸ Opening Brief at pp. 11,12,15,18, & 28

¹¹⁹ IV-AA00964:11-16

¹²⁰ I-AA00004

¹²¹ I-AA00027

In general, the Edgeworths were not believable. For example:

- The Edgeworths sued Simon alleging Simon was not owed money, when Brian Edgeworth and Vannah both told the Court Simon was owed costs and fees.¹²²
- The Edgeworths allege Simon converted the settlement, when the disputed funds are safekept in a joint account earning the Edgeworths interest.
- The Edgeworths allege Simon is still their attorney,¹²³ even after suing Simon for conversion and seeking punitive damages.¹²⁴
- In affidavits to the Court, Brian Edgeworth inflated what he paid
 Simon in fees by about two hundred thousand dollars.¹²⁵
- In his first affidavit to the Court, Brian Edgeworth was not truthful about when settlement offers were received relative to when the contingency email was sent.¹²⁶

On appeal, the Edgeworths contest the District Court's findings by repeating their own narrative. However, the Edgeworth story is irrelevant, what matters is whether the District Court's finding was based on

¹²² Compare, e.g., I-AA000118:9-17, with V-AA01057 & V-AA01120-AA01121

¹²³ IV-AA00917

¹²⁴ I-AA00011-AA000120; III-AA000688-AA000699

¹²⁵ IV-AA000979-AA000982

substantial evidence. Because the finding that no express oral contract was formed between Simon and the Edgeworths is based on substantial evidence, such as Brian Edgeworth's own emails and lack of credibility, the finding cannot be overturned on appeal.

E. The District Court acted within its discretion when it found an implied fee contract between Simon and the Edgeworths.

The District Court found an implied contract with a payment term of \$550.00 an hour for Simon. On appeal, Simon acknowledges that the bills sent, the first being mailed on December 2, 2016, some 6 months after retention, may serve as substantial evidence of an implied contract such that the finding cannot be overturned on appeal. However, because the Edgeworths discharged Simon, the implied contract does not control the question of a reasonable fee. In the absence of a contract the fee is left to quantum meruit. NRS 18.015(2).

¹²⁶ V-AA01007-AA01010; V-AA01044

F. The District Court acted within its discretion when it found that Simon had been constructively discharged by the Edgeworths.

The Edgeworths argue the District Court erred when it found that the Edgeworths constructively discharged Simon on November 29, 2017. The Edgeworths' appendix is inadequate on this issue as well.

Constructive discharge of an attorney occurs when the client stops communication. In *Rosenberg v. Calderon Automation*, 1986 Ohio App.

LEXIS 5460 (Jan. 31, 1986), a lawyer worked on a case without a contract. As the case neared settlement, the client stopped all communication with the lawyer. The Ohio Appellate Court found that the client's refusal to communicate was a constructive discharge; and, that the lawyer was due a fee under quantum merit.

Commonwealth, 37 Va. App. 687, 697-98 (Va. 2002), the court found constructive discharge of a lawyer when the client placed "counsel in a position that precluded effective representation and thereby constructively discharged his counsel or (2) through his obstructionist behavior, dilatory conduct, or bad faith, the defendant de facto waived counsel."

Failure to pay an attorney can be constructive discharge. See e.g., Christian v. All Persons Claiming Any Right, 962 F. Supp. 676 (U.S. Dist.

V.I. 1997) ("Further, the court considers Sewer's failure to pay attorneys' fees as a constructive termination of the attorney-client relationship between Sewer and D'Anna.").

Suit by a principal against an agent is constructive discharge. See *Tao v. Probate Court for the Northeast Dist.* #26, 2015 Conn. Super. LEXIS 3146, *13-14, (Dec. 14, 2015). See also *Maples v. Thomas*, 565 U.S. 266 (2012); *Harris v. State*, 2017 Nev. LEXIS 111; and *Guerrero v. State*, 2017 Nev. Unpub. LEXIS 472.

There was substantial evidence of constructive discharge.

- The Edgeworths stopped communication with Simon. 127
- The Edgeworths stopped taking Simon's advice. 128
- The Edgeworths hired other counsel to wrap up the Viking settlement and to pursue Lange.¹²⁹
- The Edgeworths accused Simon of intimidation and extortion.¹³⁰
- The Edgeworths accused Simon of an intent to steal \$6,000,000.00.¹³¹

¹²⁷ IX-AA02178:9-11

¹²⁸ IX-AA02183:17-aa02184:5

¹²⁹ IX-AA02182:10-22

¹³⁰ VIII-AA01855:24-AA01856:15; VIII-AA01861:5-15

¹³¹ IX-AA02184:6-9; 1-AA00084-AA00087

- The Edgeworths sued Simon for conversion. 132
- The Edgeworths sued Simon to punish him. 133

On appeal, the Edgeworths argue, "[u]nder no logic or reason whatsoever could Simon's and Appellants' relationship be viewed as having "broken down" ..."¹³⁴ When a client stops talking to their attorney, hires other counsel, then sues the attorney to punish him, the relationship is broken. The finding of constructive discharge is based on substantial evidence and must stand.

G. The District Court acted within its discretion when it found \$200,000.00 was a reasonable fee for work done after November 29, 2017.

In a single paragraph, the Edgeworths argue that the four-page Brunzell analysis conducted by the District Court in support of the \$200,000.00 quantum meruit finding was an abuse of discretion. The argument is conclusory and inappropriately implicates the Court in giving a baseless gift to Simon. The simple simple

¹³² I-AA00111-AA00120; III-AA00688-AA00699

¹³³ VIII-AA01873:10-21

¹³⁴ Opening Brief at p.26

¹³⁵ Opening Brief at p.27

¹³⁶ Opening Brief at p.27

When a lawyer is discharged by the client, the lawyer is no longer compensated under the discharged/breached/repudiated contract but is paid based on *quantum merit*. *Gordon v. Stewart*, 324 P.3d 234 (1958) (attorney paid in *quantum merit* after client breach of agreement); and, *Cooke v. Gove*, 114 P.2d 87 (Nev. 1941) (fees awarded in *quantum merit* when there was no contingency agreement).

When there is no express contract, an attorney is due a reasonable fee under the Nevada attorney lien statute, NRS 18.015(2). A court has wide discretion on the method of calculation of the attorney's fee. *Albios v. Horizon Communities, Inc.,* 132 P.3d 1022, 1034 (Nev. 2006). Whatever the calculation, the amount of the attorney's fee must be reasonable under the *Brunzell* factors. *Ibid.* The court should enter written findings of the reasonableness of the fee under the *Brunzell* factors. *Argentena Consolidated Mining Co., v. Jolley, Urga, Wirth, Woodbury & Standish*, 216 P.3d 779, at fn2 (Nev. 2009).

The District Court's findings address the *Brunzell* factors and bases the \$200,000.00 fee on undisputed facts such as the phenomenal result obtained by Simon and that Simon increased the Lange offer even after the

Edgeworths constructively discharged him.¹³⁷ Further, the fee amount is supported by the uncontested testimony of Will Kemp.

The Simon Rule strawman argument does not really apply to any issue on appeal but will be addressed here. The straw argument is false rhetoric meant to raise emotions. The District Court found against every factual premise of the so-called rule, the Court found the lien was perfected and enforceable, there was no express oral contract, and that Simon was owed reasonable fees and \$68,000.00 in costs. Plan Zombie (whatever that may be) and the inchoate unclean hands argument are much the same factually baseless arguments meant only to unfairly smear Simon. In addition, the equitable defense of unclean hands cannot be argued by the Edgeworths because it was first raised on appeal.

The Edgeworth practice of challenging a finding with its own narrative bolstered by name calling is unavailing. The District Court finding is supported by substantial evidence and must stand.

H. The District Court acted within its discretion under NRCP 12(d) when matters outside of the pleadings were considered in dismissing the Edgeworth complaint.

The Edgeworths appeal the use of "external evidence" when the District Court dismissed the Edgeworths' collateral conversion complaint.

¹³⁷ IX-AA02191-AA02194

External evidence is assumed to refer to matters outside of the pleadings.

The Edgeworths attack the consideration of matters outside of the pleadings without a citation to authority. 138

The Edgeworth position is flat wrong. NRCP 12(d) explicitly allows consideration of matters outside of pleadings when ruling on a motion to dismiss. The consideration of such matters is discretionary. The District Court did not act capriciously or when it considered its own findings.

The Edgeworth proposition that the Court must allow the fictional allegation of an oral contract or conversion to stand, when the Court has already ruled otherwise, is absurd. When a District Court has found against a party on a factual assertion or claim, the Court is not obligated to ignore its own findings and allow the party a second chance to prevail on the same assertion or claim. Whether one consults the public policy promoting judicial economy, the law of claim preclusion and its goal of finality (*Five Star Capital Corp., v. Ruby*, 124 Nev. 1048, 194 P.3d 709

¹³⁸ Opening Brief at p.23

¹³⁹ NRCP 12(d) states: (d) **Result of Presenting Matters Outside the Pleadings.** If, on a motion under Rule 12(b)(5) or 12(c), matters outside the pleadings are presented to and not excluded by the court, the motion must be treated as one for summary judgment under Rule 56. All parties must be given a reasonable opportunity to present all the material that is pertinent to the motion.

(2008)), or other expressions of *res judicata*, the bottom line is that a party gets one shot at a proving a fact or claim.

There is no basis to ignore NRCP 12(d) and the public policy promoting judicial economy and finality to allow the Edgeworths a second chance to prove an oral contract was formed or that a conversion occurred. While it might serve the Edgeworths intent of punishing Simon by extending litigation, the venture would be an existential waste of judicial resources.

To drive the point home, the Edgeworths' complaint alleged an express oral contract was formed on or about May 1, 2016¹⁴⁰, which was then breached. Because the Court found there was no express oral contract, there is no genuine issue regarding a breach.¹⁴¹

The second cause of action asks for a declaratory judgment regarding the terms of an express oral contract that was found not to exist; and, a declaration that the Edgeworths are due the entire settlement — when there is no genuine issue because the Edgeworths admit, and the Court found, that Simon is owed fees and costs.

The third cause of action is for conversion, the keystone of which is the Edgeworth assertion that they are due the full settlement. Which is, again, a proposition on which there is no genuine issue because the Court

¹⁴⁰ III-AA00690:13-19

found fees and costs were owed to which the Edgeworths agree. In addition, the District Court also found that the settlement was safekept in a joint trust account, and that Simon acted appropriately under the law, citing the uncontested ethics opinion of former State Bar Counsel David Clark.¹⁴²

The last three causes of action are all predicated on the existence of the oral contract and the claim that the Edgeworths are due the entire settlement, which is clearly incorrect. There is no laudatory purpose to allowing a complaint to proceed on these claims when the issues have already been decided. There was no error.

I. The District Court correctly found that there was no good faith basis to bring a claim of conversion against Simon.

The Edgeworths argue the sanction for filing and maintaining the conversion claim against Simon was an abuse of discretion. The Edgeworth appendix does not include Simon's reply in support of the motion, motion exhibits or the hearing transcript.

As this Court reaffirmed in *Capanna*, 134 Nev. 888, 432 P.3d 726, if on the whole of the evidence a party pursued a claim without a good faith basis, the District Court has discretion to assess fees and costs.

¹⁴¹ IX-AA02202:17-21

¹⁴² I-AA00126-AA00136

Here, the Edgeworths sued Simon for conversion before the settlement checks were deposited, when the money was safekept in a joint account over which their lawyer had control pursuant to their proposal, when they agree Simon was owed money for fees (even if they disagreed about the amount) and when Simon complied with the lien statute. In addition, the Edgeworths have yet to explain how the facts satisfy the elements of conversion (*Evans v. Dean Witter Reynolds*, 116 Nev. 598, 5 P.3d 1043 (2000)), in particular how the Edgeworths satisfy exclusivity (*M.C. Multi-Family Development, L.L.C. v. Crestdale Associates, Ltd.*, 193 P.3d 536, 543 (2008)), or establish that acting in conformity with the attorney lien statute is wrongful.

Angela Edgeworth spoke the truth when she testified the conversion complaint was filed to punish Simon. The sanction was well deserved.

J. The District Court acted within its discretion when it used the \$5,000.00 cost of expert David Clark as a measure of the sanction.

The Edgeworths contest the grant of the \$5,000.00 cost of expert

David Clark incurred in defense of the conversion case. The cost grant

was not an abuse of discretion. The Court specifically mentioned the

uncontested opinion of Mr. Clark in its dismissal of the conversion cause of

action,¹⁴³ an action which the Court later found was filed and maintained without a good faith basis.¹⁴⁴ Simon is due his costs as a prevailing party and/or as a sanction. Either way, the cost is reasonable and related.

K. The District Court could have followed a better course by referencing the *Brunzell* analysis submitted by Simon in support of the sanction fee award, but it is not reversible error.

A detailed *Brunzell* analysis supporting the sanction would have been the better practice. However, such an analysis was submitted to the Court¹⁴⁵, and the Edgeworths did not bring the absence of an analysis to the attention of the District Court when there was an opportunity to cure the perceived error under NRCP 52. Accordingly, the Edgeworths waived the issue on appeal. Further, the Edgeworths cannot establish undue prejudice, about \$250,000.00 in fees and costs were sought, and the Court awarded about 20%, a more detailed analysis might increase the amount.

L. The District Court abused its discretion when it denied the Simon Anti-SLAPP motion as moot.

The District Court abused its discretion when the Court denied the Anti-SLAPP motion as moot.

Mootness is a question of the existence of an actual controversy or

¹⁴³ IX-AA02203-10:14

¹⁴⁴ X-AA02472:16-AA02473:4

¹⁴⁵ IX-AA02191-AA02194

justiciability. *Personhood Nevada v. Bristol,* 126 Nev 599, 602, 245 P.3d 572, 574 (2010).

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